
Regular Minutes
Page r
June 4, 2024

Minutes of a Regular Meeting held by the Planning Board of the Town of Shawangunk,
County of Ulster, State of New York, at the Town Office Building, 14 Central Avenue,
Wallkill, New York, on Tuesday, 4th day ofJune zoz4.

Those absent were: Sal Patella
Todd Widmark

AIso Present: Alex Danon, Town Board Member, Kathy Ebbrell, Court Clerk, Rich Holt,
Esq., Town Attorney; Bonnie Franson, AICP CEP, Town Planning Board Consultant. Please
see sign-in sheet for rest of attendees.

Meeting location: Town HaIl, 14 Central Avenue, Wallkill, NY 12589

Open Regular Meeting: 7:oo pm

Emergency Exits Announcement

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Minutes of May 7, 2024

Mr. Watkins stated Mr. Reid sent an email stating I addressed the Board at last month's
Planning Board meeting regarding procedures and requested to make a reference pertaining
to his email in tJre May lh minutes.

A first motion was made by Rich Barnhart and seconded by John Szarowski to
approve the Meeting Minutes of l0f,ay 7,2024 with Mr. Reid's comments. Vote:
All Ayes: S, Abstain: o, Absent: 2

NO NEW P U B I,I C IIEARTNGS..

CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC IIEARING:

E&L FARMS - Two Lot Subdivision (Applicant No. 2o24-o4)
SBL: 1o5.1-1-26.122, 152.54 acres, Address: 3or4 State Route 52, Pine Bush, \IY 12566. L.ot
Line Adjustment to create two parcels, approximately toz.5 acres and So acres. Property
Class: Rural Residential, Pine Bush School and Pine Bush Fire District.

Enter.ed hto Record:
. Short Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) dated March 6, zoz4, last revised May zo, zoz4,

Suwey Plat dated March 4, 2024, last revised May zo, zoz4 from Margaret Hillriegel, tand
Sumeyor

o Memo Dated June 4, zoz4 regardint feedback to E&L Farms Two tot Subdivision from Nelson
Pope Voorhis, Ms. Bonnie Franson, AICP CEP

. Memo Dated June 4, zoz4 regarding feedback to E&L Farms Two Iot subdivision from MHE
Engineering, Mr. Shawn Arnott, P.E.

Mr. Watkins stated E&L FARMS is a Continuation Public Hearing from last month's
Planning Board meeting on May 76, 2023.

Those present were: Rich Barnhart
John Szarowski
Ryan Reid
John Leonette
Mark Watkins, Chair



Regular Minutes
Page z
Jlune 4,2024

Mrs. Pegry Hillriegel stated Ed and Lynn Garvey own approximately 152 acres. They are
proposing a two-lot subdivision to create one parcel of toz acres and a second parcel over 5o
acres. I changed the property line to keep the proposed line at least 5o feet and purposely
made it 53 feet from the solar structures. The solar structures have been located and shown
on the plan, along with the landscaping. The open mine areas, we walked along the edge of
the grass, located those, and showed them on the plan too.

Net Acres:
On Lot 2, I put a chart in the middle of the map showing the different uses and net area
ACTES:

Farming - z (crops)
Wetlands - 10.6 +/-
Solar Array - rz.9
Mining - r.o
Minimum for Dwelling - 6

The 5o acres is more than enough for all the uses. The 96 net acre parcel, I did not do as
much; lot is well over the requirement on that lo2-acres.

Driveway:
A driveway can go any place. Mr. Garvey has plenty of acreage to move the driveway and
propcrty ctlrripnrcnt iflrc chooscs to do so.

Ms. Franson's Mcmo Rcvicw

Nct l.ot Acrcs - Zorrintl District:
&s per lhc prior nru:ting nrintttcs, Ms. ["rlnson stittod thc nrining activity on l.ot t was going
to lrt'lc[t open arrd urrsrrLt'il il rvas strbltaclt'tl ottl ol l,ol t as oppost'tl Lu Lrtt :.:. \\'ltctt tc
assign ir nrininrtrnr lol arca to t usc, wc usc thrt nrinin.rtrrn that is required in that zoning
di.sl.rict (z acles is a urirrirnurn). Nls. llillricl4el statcd lot L is wltcru tltc rnirriug rvill bc goiug
awav (open urining show on Irrt t of nraps). 'l'lrc luruse is on Lot z and the urining will
continue thcrc.

['lag lrt:
Mr. Watkins stated he had an issue with the Flag Lot (Lot t) not being named a Flag lot.
Mr. Watkins stated we are not calling the big lot a flag lot because in the future you want to
subdivide it. Ms. Franson stated they are calling it a Flag tot but not adding a note stating it
cannot be further subdivided. Mr. Watkins would like to add a note regarding about further
building. Mr. Garvey stated you cannot because there is no road frontage. Mr. Watkins
stated he is trying to mitigate the reason that we are allowing future subdivisions to prevent
future problems because it is still'a flag lot" in case someone brings up the flag lot
regulations. If we can add a note "a road can be built for a future subdivision."

Mr. Reid recommended you could state the intention ofthe Planning Board was to waive the
Ianguage ofno further subdivision. Ms. Franson stated or note that this is a flag lot and the
flag lot regulations shall apply. Mr. Watkins stated he is trying to protect the people that
own the property and the first thing when someone sees a flag lot, no further subdivision and
one house only. Mr. Garvey stated he does not want it in writing stating that it can be done.
Mr. Watkins stated we can do this in the resolution and will figure it out and asked Mr. Holt
if he can provide the language? Mr. Hoyt stated yes.

Mrs. Hillriegel stated she could put a note on the map to state "if Lot r is to be further
developed, a road is to be constructed". It was decided to not add a note to the plan, and to
add appropriate language in the resolution.

A first motion was made by John Szarowski and seconded by Rich Barnhart to
close the Public Hearing. Vote: All Ayes: 5, Abstains o, Absent: z



Regular Minutes
Page 3
J]one 4,2024

Negative Declaration (NeeDec) :

Mr. Hoyt stated a NegDec is required. The Board agreed to have a verbal NegDec this
evening as there was no interest from public.

- No environmental significance
- No proposed disturbance
- No construction proposed
- No impact to land or water resources
- No new community service demand generated
- No impact on agricultural resources
- It is not within a critical environmental area
- No transportation generated by the building
- No demand for additional utilities or services

Recreation Fee:
Fee in lieu of recreation is required by the Planning Board for t}re one lot being created.

SEORA:
A minor subdMsion is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. The Planning Board conducted an
uncoordinated review for this project. A Short Environmental Assessment form, Part r, has
been submitted and revised as requested.

A motion was made by Rich Barnhart and seconded by Ryan Reid to deterrnine
that the project will not have a significant impact on the environment and issue
a Negative Declaration. Vote: AIl Ayes: S, Abstain: o, Absent: 2

A motion was made by Rich Barnhart and seconded by John Szarowski to
approve the T\ro Lot Subdivision for E&L Farrns subject to the conditions, and
all of which will be memorialized in a decision letter to be prepared by the
Planning Board Attorney. Vote: All Ayes: S, Abstain: o,Absent:2

APPEARANCES:

Harrier Ridge Estates - Mako Homes - 7-Lot Subdivision
(Applicant No. zozg-o9)
SBL: 106.1-3-29.42r, Address: Dubois & Malloy Road, 26.5 Acres, Property Class:
Abandoned R-Ag z, Wallkill Central School District, Wallkill Fire District (FD 171). Seven
Iots - Conventional Subdivision.

Enter€d into Record:
r Memo dated May 7, 2c24 reBatding Harrier Ridge Estates (MAKO Homes) Major

Subdivision with Land Survey / Subdivision Plan Map and Percolation Certification from
MNTM Engineering, Zachary A. Peters, P.E.

. Memo Dated M ay 3t, 2c24 regarding feedback to Harrier Ridge Estates (MAKO Homes)
Major Subdivision Review from Nelson Pope Voorhis, Ms. Bonnie Franson, AICP CEP

. Memo Dated June 4, zoz4 regarding feedback to Harrier Ridge Estates (MAKO Homes)
Major Subdivision from MHE Engineering, Mr. Shawn Arnott, P.E.

Mr. Ryan Smithem stated Harrier Ridge Estates is a 7-[ot Conventional Subdivision with a
road accessing six ofthe lots off of Malloy Road and a single driveway off of DuBois Road
(Flag tot Z).



Regular Minutes
Page 4
June 4,2024

Public Roadways:
The proposed road (culde-sac) has been configured to Town Codes as a rule. A public
roadway would have curbs in order to take advantage of thc bcrms and soil from the site and
provide some infiltration rather than a curve road would require stormwater basins and
pipes which would then divert all that flow and infiltration to Malloy Road and create more
driinage. This was discussed previously with Highway Superintendent, Rich Blazeski, and
awaiting a determination. We are here for additional comments and want to move project
along.

Mr. Reid stated he is satisfied with the layout.

Mr. Watkins questioned Mr. Smithem if he had seen the Engineer comments from Mr.
Arnott received this evening? Mr. Smithem does not believe any of the comments are an
issue and everything seemed to be very minor.

Public Hearing:
Ms- Franson stated a Public Hearing will be required for a major subdMsion. At some point,
this will be sent to the Ulster County Planning Board for GML review. An EMC site visit is
recommended. Mr. Watkins stated we will send out a note to EMC to coordinate a date.

Lots:
All the lots seem to comply with the zoning. For Flag Lot 7, there is a requirement that the
tirnt yard bc z timcs what is norntally' rctluircd, which rvoultl bc l5o tcct - ntakc sttre that
yru arc showing thc distancc.

Anvthine rclaterl to thc'lirrvn's llntint'cring is tor tht: l'lnqintxrtrs t'trvicrv. 'l'ht' lirtrits of
disturblnce at 4.9 lcrcs arc drlrvn prcttl tightll .rnd l<xrking at thc constl'uction o[thc ner,'
Irorrrr,: orr lirc otlrr.r'IIlko prrrlrL,r tr. it rri]l liLelr lrc tttrtlc llt:tr rrltitl is slt,rult rrtt tltt ttt.tlrs.

.\t ().1ilcr'('s)1)uslroultl lrt'tloirrgrr lirll SWI'l'l'. Nlr. Sntillrctrt st;rlcd lhis Lrt is a lrit tlil'li'r'cnt
duc to its tlltncss thnt thc rctluircd gra<ling tirr this is much lcss. Ms. l"rrtnson is

rccommcnding thc iixrtagc bc looketl inkr tluc to huycrs wanting big honrcs and yards which
will have more disturbance. Mr. Smithem stated it is about 4.9 acres of disturbance total,
including all the road grading. Ms. franson stated there is a limited area around the houses
and owner's preference as to what they want to do with landscaping. Mr. Smithem stated a

lot of the land is grass already. Mr. watkins stated with the land previously being an apple
orchard farm, we would want the soils to be tested. Ms. Franson stated consider the
comments and standard house relocation notes if this is a plan you are pursuing.

SEOR:
This is an Unlisted Action- The Planning Board can conduct a coordinated or uncoordinated
review with the recommendation ofhaving a coordinated review to be conducted. There are
comments that need to be addressed once an Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) is
submitted and a decision needs to be made if you want it circulated. As per the EAF, it is in
an archeologically sensitive area and it is important to consult vrith Parks and Recreation-
Bald Eagles and Northern Harriers are present in the vicinity and should be discussed with
DEC.

Mr. Szarowski stated the clearing of lots is unrealistic and over 5 acres. Mr. Szarowski also
stated instead ofthe storm water control, you will need Quality Control. You have a big
enough lot sizes ifyou do not trigger the storm urater retention or quantity requirements.
Ms. Franson stated Mr. Marshall had mentioned a prior disturbance because ofthe soils.
You did not need retention, but the infiltration. A soil and quality test will have to be looked
at due to pesticides in the orchard.



Regular Minutes
Page 5
Jtne 4, 2024

Mr. Watkins polled the board for a coordinated review - the members agreed.

Mr. Hoyt questioned if there has been a determination if this is cluster, and if not a cluster,
why and do your past records indicate this?

Conventional Plan:
Mr. Watkins stated a motion was made to go with a conventional plan because of the area
that it is in, and everybody has a z-acre zoning that is conforming to the area and why we
decided on a conventional plan rather than a cluster. This was not sent to the Town Board.
Mr. Hoyt stated you do not have to send to the Town Board for a conventional, only a cluster
proposal goes to the Town Board. Ms. Franson stated from a cluster perspective, it does not
have all the resources that you would normally see for a cluster that you are trying to protect,
whetler it is wetlands, habitats, and community character. Natural features are not there
and was documented in the last planning memo. Mr. Watkins stated he will be in the office
Thursday and look it up.

Cinculation :
Mr. Smithem asked if this is going to be circulated to the county? Mr. Watkins stated not at
this time. We are going to have you attend one more meeting and the county is going to want
the soil testing. Ms. Franson questioned Mr. Watkins do you want to declare Notice of Intent
and once Mr. Smittrem updates the EAF, and it is satisfactory, it can go out prior to the next
meeting? Mr. Watkins agreed.

A motion was made by Ryan Reid and seconded by John Leonetti to be kad
Agency, Vote: All Ayes: S, Abstain: o,Absent:2

Mr. Szarowski questioned if we received the SEQR on this? Ms. Franson stated you need the
updated EAF for circulation first because the major subdivision changed to 7 t ots. Mr.
Watkins stated once we receive all the documentation prior to the next meeting we will be
able to circulate and must be reviewed. This is critical to SEQR

Mr. Holt stated to review the December 5, zoz3 Planning Board minutes where ttre board
voted for conventional versus cluster.

Rucinski-Scott - Two Lot Line Adjustment
(Applicant No. g024-06) SBL's:
99.1-6-13.110 (28.2 Acres) - 39 Papuga Road
99.1-6-13.120 (1.2o Acres) - 116 Papuga Road
Pine Bush School District, Shawangunk Valley Fire (FD174), Two lot Line Adjustment,
lands of Robert and Rhonda Rucinski and Marian & Kathleen Scott.

Entered into Record:
. Memo dated May 15, zoz4 regarding Rucinski-Scott - Two tot Line Adjustment:

Subdivision Plan, Lot Line Change Application, Project Narrative, Short EAF, Deeds of
Record, Tax Map from MNTM Engineering, Ryan Smithem, E.I.T.

o Memo dated May 3r, zoz4 regarding Rucinski-Scott - Two tot Line Adjustment from
Nelson Pope Voorhis, Ms. Bonnie Franson, AICP CEP

Mr. Ryan Smithem stated the project site is located on the northerly side of New Prospect
Road at the intersection ofPapuga Road and New Prospect Road. The project involves a
two- tax parcels - it is a tot Line Adjustment covering about 30 acres in size and adding z-
acres to the smaller parcel to bring it to g.r9 acres total.



Regular Minutes
Page 6
Jvne 4,2024

Application Signatures:
Ms. Franson stated Marilyn Scott, Katherine Scott, and Rhonda Rucinski will need to sign
the application if they are applicable as done on the first tot Line Adjustment earlier this
year and if still applicable. Mr. Smithem stated he is to going to double check with the
signatures and owner's endorsement for Mr. Rucinski.

Agriculture Data Statement:
Ms. Franson stated you are within 5oo feet ofan Ag District and I do not see an Ag Data
Statement and this is a lot line adjustment. Mr. Holt stated he will look into the Town law
as to whether the L[,A needs an agricultural data statement.

Lot Line Adjustment Requlationsi
Ms. Franson stated the lot line adjustment conditions appear to be met (see Ms. Franson's
memo entered into record).
- No new lot to be created.
- No future subdivision.
- Shall not create any nonconformity.
- Shall not result in any future development
- Boundary lines need to be merged as part of approval and has !q! been met.

Plannins Board Decisions to Be Made:
Ms. Franson rcvicwcd thc folkrwing (scc Ms. [ranson's tncnto cntcrcd into rccord).
Owner'.s cousent not providcd tionr all krt owncrs - one rpplication rcccivctl.
- Revised nretes and lnunds uot providod. Attorncv to opiuc.
- ltlcntification ofarca bctbrc atrd atlcr.
- Bulk tal)lc rrrust iueludc 'pror idctl ' e,rlutnu lirl botlt loLs.

Public hearinq is not rctqttirctl;tnd is oplional.
- l'lanning, lhraltl LiNII. tcriult is txrt tcquit'ctl.
- tf thcrc is a nclv rlrivcwav. I hc I Iighwav Srrprrrinlcrrrk:nt slrottkl rcvicw lhc pl;tns a nd

detenninc iI the prrposerl dt'iveway locatitxr is acceptrble.

!l'ct1:rnds:
Ms. Franson questioned if there are any wetlands in the depressional areas, and there was a

pond present ifyou look at old aerials in this whole vicinity ofwhere the house is going to be.
Mr. Smithem stated there are two depressions from material movement and testing was
done with no signs of water. Mr. Smithem to provide the Board with reports.

SEQR:
Ms. Franson stated a Lot Line Adjustment is a Tlpe II Action in SEQR. No review is

required but someone may want to see the parcel visually and confirm there are no wetlands.
Mr. Watkins stated he will take a look at the parcel.

A motion was made by Ryan Reid and seconded by Rich Barnhart to waive a
Public Hearing. Vote: All Ayes: 5, Abstain: o,Absent:2

Mr. Watkins stated he would like Rucinski-Scott to be on next month's agenda to approve
once updated documentation has been provided back to us. Mr. Smithem stated he will
double check with the applicant and get back to us.

Deed:
Mr. Holt questioned Mr. Smithem regarding owners of tax parcel. Mr. Smithem stated the
smaller parcel is owned by Mr. Rucinski and the larger parcel is own by Mrs. Scott. Mr. Holt
stated when it is not in the same ownership, we would like the Deed transferring the
property to Mr. Rucinski to go with the map to Kingston to avoid the situation where there is
a lot line change but no land transfer. If we get that Deed submitted to us in recordable
form, it can go with the signed map. Mr. Watkins stated that can also be a condition of
approval. Mr. Holt agreed. Mr. Smithem questioned the description of the Deed?



Attorney Hoyt is recused, he left the dias.

Mr. Smithem stated this projeet site is located on t}re northerly side of Bruyu Turnpike. The
proposed development involves two (z) lot line adjustments between three existing parcels-
No new parcels will be created as a result of this project.

T&ble l: l,.}t liizr !tum.rDary

Tot Parccl Gross Arco lAcrrs )

2.t6 l.l6
6.i.6-r 55.1t I

l(b.1.2.21 50.7U -l7.0tt

William Bender will be adding to his land on the southeasterly side of the project from
approximately o.S acres to 2.161 acres.

Mr. Watkins questioned if the old farm from the intersection of Bruyn and Albany Post
belongs to Breery Valley? Mrs. Denise Jackson from Breery Valley, LLC stated yes. Mr.
Watkins questioned 5 acres from Breezy Valley parcel will be going to SVG Holding? Mr.
Smithem stated that is right. Mr. Watkins stated this is more of a conforming lot and
questioned the board ifthere are any questions?

Breezv Vallev. LLC Representation:
Ms. Franson requested evidence of the people who submitted the application represent the
LLC's. The applicant needs to be signed by all parties and evidence should be submitted that
the individuals can represent the respective LLCs. It does not appear all persons are listed
and no evidence of representation for the LLC.

Regular Minutes
Page 7
JlJne 4,2024

Mr. Hoyt explained we are looking for the actual Deed from Mrs. Scott to Mr. Rucinski. This
would not be required if Mr. Rucinski owned everything.

Deoression / Wetlands:
Mr. Rucinski stated that was a gravel bank years ago. Watchtower came in and cut it deep so
they can get to the stone causinS the depression. They pushed the top soil up and you will
see it all over. They vrent too deep when they were not supposed to go that far and it has
been like that for years. Mr. Watkins questioned if the depression will be filled in. Mr.
Rucinski stated he had a survey done for that and turned it over to Mr. Smithem showing
that it is not wetlands. Mr. Watkins stated we will need those documents and then we can
move forward.

Breery Valley, 52 Bruyn Turnpike: Three Lot Line Adjustment (Applicant No.
2024-05), SBL's:
Lo6.t-2-L7.LLt (7o.2 acres) Address: 52 Bruln Turnpike; - Breery Valley
106.1-2-16 (125'x 175' [o.5 acres]) Address: 8z Bruyn Tumpike - William & Unda Bender;
Lo6.t-2-24 (45.2 acres) Address: rSzr Albany Post Road - SVG Holdings, LLC
Wallkill Central School District, Wallkill Fire District. lot line change project.

Entered into Record:
o Memo dated May 15, zoz4 regarding Breery Valley Three tot Line Adjustment:

Subdivision Plan and Application, Project Narrative, Short EAF, Deeds ofRecord, Tax
Map and 5oo Foot Buffer from MNTM Engineering, Ryan Smithem, E.I.T.

o Memo dated May 3r, zoz4 regarding Breery Valley Three tot Line Adjustment from
Nelson Pope Voorhis, Ms. Bounie Franson, AICP CEP

Nrt Arco lAfits)
l(b.1.2. t6

lUl1.2.l7.l I I



Regular Minutes
Page 8
June 4, 2024

Agriculture Data Statement:
The site is within 5oo feet of a state-certified agricultural district. An Agricultural Data
Statement may be needed. We are getting an opinion on the prior lot line adjustment which
can be applied.

Public Hearine:
Public Hearing can be waived, not required.

A first motion was made by Rich Barrrhart and seconded by John Szarowski to
waive a Public Hearing. Vote: All Ayes: 5, Abstain: o, Absent: 2

Ms. Franson commented from her memo:
- lot line adjustment requirements have been met.
- Proofof representation for the LLC.
- Provide meets and bounds if they have not already.
- Location of wells and septic systems; not an issue because you are enlarging the one lot

and the other one is in the back ofvacant land.
- The before and after area to be provided- Mr. Smithem stated the before and after are

included in the descriptions in each ofthe lots provided.
- Gcncral policl'whcn a dclincation ofu'ctlnnds is not providcd, hydric soils arc also

includctl in thc acrcagc. '['his nccds to bc kxrkcd into.
- GML rcview is not rcquirctl.
- l)eerls lcrlrrit.rxl il lhcy-;trc tr;tnsti'rring lronl onc o$'nc[ [(, lltc otltcr'.
- 'l'vpc ll :\ctiotr. tto fitrthcr revicrl rctlttirctl. t'xctlpl lirrnr Sl'l(,)R.

- lirpographv is not retluirctl tirr lot linc adiustmcnt.

Ms. l,r'anson notctl tlrcrc is substlntially Iuorc rvctlauds on thc 1>topcrty and it should
inclLrdc thc hlrllic soils lirr thc lecolrl. Mr'. Wltliins itttlicatt:tl topoi;raph1 carr bc inclutlctl
but i.s not rctltrircd as flr ls lot linc atljtlstmcnt rcgulations.

Mr. Watkins stated once the updated paperwork is provided, we can move forward.

Hufcut / Boniface, Burlingham Road, Two Lot Proposed Subdivision
(Applicant No.: 2o21-o7) |
SBL: ro4.4-3-r8 (zr.16 acres), Address: Jason Boniface, Burlingham Road, Pine Bush

School District, Walker Valley Fire (FDrz6), z-Lot proposed subdivision project.

Entered into Recordr
. Memo dated M ay t6,2cp4 rctarding Hufcut / Boniface, Burlingham Road, Two lot

Proposed Subdivision: Subdivision Plan and Application, Project Narrative, Short EAF, Deeds
of Record, Tax from MNTM Entineerint, Ryan Smithem, E.I.T.

. Memo dated May 3r, zoz4 regarding Hufcut / Boniface, Burlingham Road, Two lot
Proposed Subdivision from Nelson Pope Voorhis, Ms. Bonnie Franson, AICP CEP

o Memo Dated June 4, zoz4 regarding Hufcut / Boniface, Burlingham Road Two lot
Proposed Subdivision from MHE Engineering, Mr. Shawn Arnott, P.E.

Mr. Smithem stated the project site is located on the southerly side of Burlingham Road at
the intersection of lakeshore Drive and Burlingham Road and land is located in the R-Agz
zoning district. It is 2r acres in size to be subdivided into a 7.t9-acre lot and a 13.65-acre lot.



Regular Minutes
Page 9
June 4, 2024

ht *unbcr

I ). le 1.19

/-r.6-l l_r.05

The project site is located in R-Ag z District. t ot z previously had the site septic design
approved by the Ulster County Department of Health. I-ot r recently completed septic
system design.

The whole project would be accessed through flag lots from Burlingham Road and would
have individual private driveways with individual wells and sewers.

[^and Fill / Gravel / Drivewa!,s:
Mr. Watkins questioned how much fill did they put in tnt z? Mr. Smithem stated he is not
sure how to quantifr it when they did the survey, but that it had already been placed there
and knows the areas is gravel.

Mr. Watkins stated they are pushing things around when he visited the site and there is no
rain on the dirt so they are still working on moving things around. I am not particularly
happy with the fuel tank on [,ot r and I understand they are running a business and you have
to take precautions if there is a fuel spill. There is a lot of fill and unsure how NYS can sign-
off on this. The far end of the fill-in appears to be 6 to 8 feet high. Mr. Smithem will look
into this. Mr. Watkins stated there is a lot of site work and a brand-new driveway right
across from l,akeshore. You mentioned in the notes there is an agreement for the ot]er
driveway. Mr. Smithem stated there are existing easements for the other driveways for
accessing. Mr. Watkins stated there is a rope to keep the trucks off the lawn and was
surprised to see because it is a tr€e company.

Mr. Watkins stated they are running a tree company business and all their trucks and
equipment are in Lot r. They built a loop that goes around. There is one tmck over by the
shed and then all the rest ofthe tmcks and trailers are on Lot r with a couple of trailers up
farther past the road.

StorT nwater Pollution Prevention Plan llFill-in / Wide-ooen Field / Trees:
Mr. Szarowski asked how much land is open right now? Mr. Watkins stated the whole thing,
not a tree on it. Mr. Szarowski questioned if they have stormwater SWPPP and is the field
that is wide open if it was dirt only? Mr. Watkins stated there is dirt on Lot z and I did take
pictures. Mr. Szarowski questioned if they have a Stormwater Permit or is there a Town
Permit for fill-in? Mr. Watkins stated he has something from the state and was the first
thing I asked for. Mr. Smithem stated we will look into it. Mr. Watkins stated see t}re shed
on [ot z circled, from the shed overpast t]re driveway is all fill. Ms. Franson questioned if
they cut the trees? Mr. Watkins stated the whole thing is a field and is wide open.

Mr. Smithem stated he has not been there before any work was started but believes the one
section was wide open already (pointing to the map). Mr. Watkins stated he has to go back
out to compare it to t}re survey done on April 8th by MNTM, and I know there were trees
there before.

Septic:
Mr. Szarowski questioned if the proposed house is on the hill. Mr. Smithem stated yes for
Lot r proposed two-bedroom dwelling. Mr. Szarowski questioned where are you putting the
septic system? Mr. Smithem stated it is in the rear. Mr. Szarowski questioned if it is off the
fill? Mr. Smithem stated yes. 'Ihis was designed by another engineer before we ever got
involved.

Tsblc l: [.0t Slzc Summar,r

Gntss Ar*t tAcrLst Net Ar&, (Actts l



Regular Minutes
Page ro
June 4, 2024

V ce on F I-ots:
Mr. Reid questioned the setback needing a variance for the two flag lots that are two separate
entrances? Mr. Reid stated I do not think a variance is necessary considering they are two
separate driveways. Ms. Franson stated it is.a subdivision and you are onlyillowed one flag
lot. The regulations state if you 

_are under 5 lots you get one in i subdivision and if you hav8
more than five lots you get two flag lots. For example, Harrier Ridge Estates, they are
allowed to have up to 2 lots (this project has a total of 7 tots). If yoi subdivide twl los, only
one lot can be a flag lot. Mr. watkins stated because it is a subdivision, you cannot have flag
Iots and the access itself does not matter. Mr. Reid questioned if this is why they need a
variance for the subdivision because of the two flag lots. Ms. Franson stated yei and the
applicant stated it in the narrative. Mr. watkins stated it is a formality that needs to be done
with zoning for the variance. Mr. Leonette stated based on the zoning, it would be a required
variance with two flag [ots. Mr. Barnhart stated he agrees.

Plannins Board Discussion - Lot Activities:
Mr. Szarowski stated he does not agree 

-with 
the fill-in project going on while they are trying

to do a subdivision because it is two different activities. Mr. wltkiis stated we have anothJr
application doing the same and it is going to trigger a SWppp. Mr. szarowski stated as far as
the lot line, I think it seems to meet the requirements. I am not happy they are actively
changing the property as it is being discussed. Mr. Reid stated since ihey are both flag lots,
they only can have a residential use on it so we can make a note referencing the
rcquircmcnts. Mr. smithem questions if they do go forward with the subdi*ision antl add
ntcastlt'cs with thc llag lots, thct would trot hc ablc to run a business out of tlrosc lots basctl
on thc zoning laws? Ms. l"ranso]r strtc(l vcs and unlcss it is tlctcrnrincd t'bc a hrmc
occLtpltiou, 

_i1.. 
rrrlr still uer:tl a perrrrit. i!I.s. i,jlnsou r.eeitetl llre zorring hrl: lrlag 1,ts slrall

onll' hc ttsctl lirr tlrc constrttclion rtntl orrc sinqlc-lirnrilv rlctrrchctl <irvcilinq rvhgrc srrirl rrsr. is
alkrrverl.

'l his. is.a.nrinrrt' srrbtlivision; no prclittt itta rl ir ppn n'ul u rrtl ti na l plarr approval 6n a nr isqr
sttbdil'isiort. \i)tl ( ilrr rc(lr.lcs[ .t clttstel lrrrt -r,,rr irrrr ;rls,, rr.rir c tli,' clrrsii.r lirr sullrlir isiolrs
u'ith ;1 krts or lcss or lr ltur.ccl of lo acrcs or lcss.

A first motion was made by Rich Barnhart and seconded by John szarowski to
waive a Cluster Subdivision. Vote: AII Ayes: S, Nays: o, Aistain: o, Absent: e

Ms. Franson stated the following:
- A Public Hearing will be required for the subdivision.
- We discussed the flag lots and the area variance needed.
- Unsure about the 4" diameter; check the right measurement is being used.

Subdivision Plan:
Ms. Franson's comments:
-- 'l'he flag lot requirements shall be met - see sectio n t77-rt.l.a. The bulk table needs to

reflect that the minimum lot area is 2x's that required in the zoning district.- To show the zx's setback requirement for the front yard.
- Provide the accessway width at both driveway locat'ions.
- Add a note that only one single-family detached dwelling is permitted on each flag lot.- The Planning Board should determine whether the "no further subdivision" note is

applicahle.
- Provide the grades for the driveway regulations.

Ms. Franson questioned why Sheet zo4, of the maps, is only showing part of it? Mr.
Smithem stated it was a preliminary plan and the next planwill havJii.



Regular Minutes
Page rr
J]Jne 4,2024

Wetlands:
Ms. Franson stated there appears to be wetlands on tle site and you may want the EMC to go
out there. Ms. Franson questioned if it was graded out? Mr. Watkins stated he did not
know. Mr. Smithem stated a small section was in the wooded area. Ms. Franson stated you
might want the EMC to go out and everyone on the Board should take a look.

Access Easements:
Ms. Franson stated it is unclear whether the map shows the access easements clearly to the
applicable lots. Which lot is Henry Tewes lot and provide SBL? There are three or four
easements t}rat apply to the small lots up by Burlingham and one might apply to t}re most
southernly property. If that is the case, is access being provided?

Disturbance:
Ms. Franson stated to make sure the disturbance is only going to be around the building lot
since the whole site has been raised. Ms. Franson questioned if the driveways are going to be
paved? Mr. Smithem stated he will confirm with the applicant. Ms. Franson stated the
driveways can only go where they are being shown. They are connected to the Ulster County
roads and you should reach out to them for comments. Mr. Smithem stated there are
existing easements on both flag lots and can be found in the tax assessor's office.

Road Maintenance Agreement / Pronertv Review:
Mr- Watkins questioned if we are going to require a road maintenance agreement for the
three parcels that are accessing off that lot? Mr. Hoyt stated make sure one does not already
exist. Mr. Watkins stated the issue is only on the second flag lot. Mr. Smithem stated he will
follow-up. Mr. Holt questioned if the issue was on both stems? Mr. Watkins stated the
driveway to the north is a newer one and the one to the south is the one that has two lots
being accessed. Mr. Watkins also stated the equipment is right on the fuel line. Ms. Franson
questioned does that have to be updated because it is now gravel. Mr. Watkins stated that
maps would have to be. Mr. Watkins stated he showed pictures of where the gravel area is to
the members. Mr. Watkins also explained where the fuel tank is with ttre truck along the
side of it. He also showed where the equipment location is and another road that is in the
back with two trailers and a parking area. Mr. Watkins stated he will take another look of the
property. Everything here is dirt and it drops off onto t}re other parcel and unsure where the
divided line is located. Ms. Franson stated on the one map, it refers to gravel and the photos
show a lot of fill-in. Ms. Franson stated an up-to-date aerial would be useful and can ask Mr.
Shawn Arnott for his service.

Ms. Franson stated the EAF was submitted on a short form and you need to add the ZBA
variance. Mr. Watkins read through Mr- Amott's comments.

Mr. Hoyt questioned if Ramirez's use their own driveway to go to the highway? Mr. Smithem
stated yes. Mr. Holt questioned on the eastern side, Solimine, tax lot 4, is there a house on
that lot and how do they get to it? Mr. Smithem stated he has to confirm and get back to us.

Ms. Franson stated tJre aerials from zozt show there was not a line. Mr. Watkins stated he
does not recall seeing one. Mr. Hoyt stated we know we need a driveway agreement to the
west, and I want to confirm if we do or do not need one for the east.

Mr. Watkins believes it is a clean fill and they are running a tree service. It is clean and not
reclaimed. Mr. Szarowski stated the DEC regulations classifu the soils for use and depending
where it comes from, you can have contamination. Mr. Watkins stated they must have
removed a lot of the trees but no stumps and it is all grass. They have been working on that
site for over two years but never drove in there.

Mr. Smithem stated there was a separate plan wit}r an approved plan by Ulster County that
was provided to us and that is the layout that they wanted to go with. The map I have is an
Ulster County septic plan. Mr. Watkins asked if it was the Department of Health? Mr.
Smithem stated yes. Ms. Franson questioned do you know what the date and year?



Regular Minutes
Page rz
June 4, 2024

Mr. Smithem stated it was 2023 but I can confirm. Ms. Franson questioned do you know if
they have a building permit from the town? Mr. Smithem stated May 1st, 2023. Mr.
Szarowski stated it needs to be on the plan.

DISCL,'SSION.;

Mr. Joseph Russek - Third Generation Homes (Applicant No. 2023-14):
SBL: 104.1-3-27, 2.3 acres, Address: Corner of Weed Road and NYS Route 5z in Walker
Valley, Commercial Site Plan 5,ooo sq. ft. for three businesses, apartments on above with
parking. Property Class: Vacant, SB (Small Business), Pine Bush School District, Walker
Valley Fire Company

Entered into Record:
. l,etter dated May 15, 2024 from the Department of Health and Site Plan Map from

Steven Green, land Surveyor
. Memo dated June 4, 2024 from MHE Engineering, Mr. Shawn Arnott, P.E.

Mr. Watkins stated the project was handed in after deadline submission date ofJune r7. We
received project on May 23, 2023. Review was not done by consultants due to time
constraints but Mr. Watkins spoke to Mr. Arnott and we were able to get his comments.

Mr. [];trnhart stal.cd thcrc shorrld bc nolhing goinr4 on thcrc rrntil it is a legitimatc ploicct. I
scc no lcilsoll kr put iL olt and I u) l]oL s(, sulc a rllrolc Lrt ofpcoplc u'ill slrolv u1t. NIr.
Szarowski statcrl hc concrrrs. Mr. Rcitl statcd hc agrccs with thc plcviorrs commcuts arr<l
thirrks it is cousistent with the cornpretrensive plan tirr this district. Mr. konette statcd hc
agrccs. Mr'. Grcen statcd wc necd a z;39 bccausc r,r,c crnnot gct comnlcnts trom agcncics
without thc rcfcrrals from thc towu-

A motion was made by Ryan Reid and seconded by Rich Barnhart to hold a
Public Hearing on Tuesday, July z"d for a Public Hearing. Vote: AII Ayes: 5,
Abstain: o, Absent: 2

Mr. Green stated the reason why we need the 239 is the DOT cannot respond without the
referral from the municipality. Same as the Planning Department who has to review it
according to the law. Mr. Russek stated we need a letter from the DOT stating he saw no
issues with it and another document, but I am not sure what that is. Ms. Franson stated I do
not think it refers to the county and do not know if anything has been said or done about it.
Mr. Watkins stated I do not think anything has been done and it is not going to go to the
county. The SEQR process and review has to be done and then it can go to the county. The
Engineer advised he has an issue with the work you are still doing on the site that we asked
you not to do. Material and things are being delivered to the site and spread around while
you are under review with the Planning Board. Mr. Russek stated we have not spread
anything around since the last time you asked us to stop. Mr. Watkins questioned how many
trucks loads? Mr. Russek stated about 16 to zo trucks. Mr. Watkins stated you are being
made aware not to do any work. Ms. Franson stated the SEQR regulations require that there
are no alterations to the site during SEQR review. Mr. Russek stated the Town put it on the
site so they can truck it for shorter distance.

Ms. Franson questioned Mr. Russek if he spoke to the Highway Superintendent? I think he
had questions about the access. Mr. Russek stated he had moved the access farther back
which then crosses the roo ft. buffer for the wetlands. Mr. Green stated there is wetland
across the street on the opposite side of Weed Road.

Mr. (;rccn statctl we alrcadv corrt:ctctl and moditictl a lot of tlx. itcrns hascd on Mr. Arnott's
('orunlents. Mr. Rrrssek stated thc reasrn whv we wanted to bc on thc itsen(la wls to sct'if we
coultl yrssihlv havc Public earing at Lhc ncxt Phnuing lilrrtl nrecting in,Itrlr?


